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Solicitation Amendment/Modification 
 

1. Solicitation No. 121919/ZM 

2. Solicitation Name U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars 

3. Issue Date December 19, 2019 

4. Closing Date February 14, 2020 

5. Solicitation Amendment No. 2 

6. Solicitation Amendment Date February 4, 2020 

 
7. The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 9 below. 
 

8. The hour and dates specified for receipt of proposals: ☒ is not extended; ☐is extended as described 
in Item 9 below. 
 
9. Description of Amendment/Modification: The purpose of this solicitation amendment is to inform 
prospective offerors that the above numbered solicitation is hereby amended to provide responses to 
questions as follows. 
 

1. We see that May through September 2020 is the period during which the U.S. Future Leaders 
Topical Seminars can take place. Does IIE have preferred dates for the seminars? 
  
IIE does not have preferred dates for the seminars, but the seminars must occur between May 
1, 2020 and September 30, 2020. Offerors are requested to provide a brief statement in their 
narrative proposal on the preferred month(s) and date(s) (Thursday through Friday) for the 
proposed seminar. Offerors are also requested to note any months and/or dates that would not 
work for their institution. (See page 7 of the RFP.) 

 
2. On page 5, the RFP states that “Offerors are also invited to send any additional information or 

supplemental material (maximum of 6 pages) they believe will aide IIE in proposer evaluating 
their service offerings.” Pages 7-8 (sections 4-7) of the RFP contain descriptions of 
supplemental documentation that is required. Does the statement on page 5 mean that the 
supplemental documentation described in sections 4-7 must be no more than 6 pages? Or 
does it mean that we can include up to an extra 6 pages of information beyond the 
requirements set down in the RFP? 

 
The statement on page 5 of the RFP means Offerors can include up to 6 pages of additional 
information of supplemental material beyond the required information and materials for the 
proposal. 
 

3. How many U. S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars will be offered in 2020? Will one institution 
host XX seminars or will there be a total of XX seminars with each one hosted by a different 
institution? 
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IIE anticipates offering a total of three U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars for Gilman alumni in 
2020 with each seminar being hosted by a different institution.  

 
4. Are these U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars held more than once a year? This is something 

I think my colleagues and I might want to bring to campus, but we may not be able to make 
the February 2020 submission deadline. 
 
The current Request for Proposals is to host a U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminar in May, June, 
July, August, or September of 2020. Pending funding, the U.S. Department of State’s Bureau of 
Educational and Cultural Affairs anticipates holding U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars in 
2021. 
 

5. My institution is very interested in responding to the U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminar RFP. 
Can you tell me if it would be permissible to open the actual seminar sections to non-Gilman 
participants (at our cost, of course)? 

 
The U.S. Future Leaders Topical Seminars are for alumni of the Gilman Program. Offerors should 
propose sessions, activities, and industry site visits that are catered to Gilman alumni. (See page 
10 of the RFP for a description of seminar participants.) If an Offeror is selected to host a U.S. 
Future Leaders Topical Seminar, IIE is open to discussing the possibility of having a limited 
number of non-Gilman participants at some or part of the seminar, but any associated costs and 
logistics would be assumed by the host institution. 

 
6. The RFQ (page 4) states that "The scope and content of the proposed U.S. Future Leaders 

Topical Seminar should be centered on one of the seven topics identified below." and the 
given topics have a wide scope and depth of knowledge in it.  How detailed and technical 
these seminars has to be built? The depth of topics covered in seminar must depend on the 
academic background of students who will be attending the sessions. Please explain the scope 
and depth of the topics to be covered to help institutions understand the scope of the RFP and 
develop seminar contents accordingly. Otherwise seminars can get too technical and 
attendees may find themselves lost. On the contrary, seminars may not contain enough 
substance and may become trivial. 
 
Please see pages 7-8 (Sections 3F and 5) of the RFP for descriptions of the required details and 
technical components for the narrative proposal. The seminar participants will be Gilman alumni 
whose career interests align with the identified topic for the seminar. They will represent a 
variety of ages, backgrounds, and career experience levels, but the seminar is intended for 
alumni who have already gained employment in an industry related to the seminar topic and are 
looking to develop the skills and expertise needed to become future leaders in the field. For 
example, if an Offeror proposes a seminar on Cyber Issues, then the seminar participants will be 
a mix of Gilman alumni who have careers working with Cyber Issues and are looking to develop 
the skills and expertise needed to become future leaders in the field. Additionally, an Offeror 
can propose a seminar focused on a specific area within the topic (i.e. a seminar focused on 
Cybersecurity).  
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7. Must the participants stay in hotels, or can we propose that they stay in dormitories on our 
campus? If they can stay on campus, do there need to be 50 (or 52, for the program staff) 
ADA-accessible rooms? 
 
Offerors can propose local hotels and on-campus spaces for seminar participants and program 
staff. All rooms must be ADA-accessible. Seminar participants will be in double occupancy rooms 
and program staff will be in single occupancy rooms. 
 

8. For the topic Closing the Skills Gap, is it acceptable to propose just one of the themes, i.e. 
Business or Education or High-Tech Sector, etc., or does it have to be all themes combined? 
 
An Offeror can propose to focus on any of the themes listed under the Closing the Skills Gap 
topic. For example, Closing the Skills Gap in Business, Closing the Skills Gap in Education, Closing 
the Skills Gap in High-Tech Sectors, etc. Please note the proposed seminar must also integrate a 
leadership subtheme into the seminar content. 
 

9. Industry site visits: could one of these be virtual, in order to muster global resources? Or must 
both of them be local, on the ground? 
 
The industry site visits should be local and in-person to allow for direct interaction between 
industry leaders and Gilman alumni. The industry site visits must include substantial activities 
and interactions focused on developing participants’ career skills, industry knowledge, and/or 
leadership abilities. Industry site visits that are merely tours will not be allowed. (See page 7 and 
10 of the RFP for industry site visit details.) 

 
 
END OF AMENDMENT 


